
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Social Services, 
Health and 
Housing Policy 
Overview 
Committee 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 11 DECEMBER 
2012 
 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
Councillors on the Committee 
 
Judith Cooper (Chairman) 

Peter Kemp (Vice-Chairman) 

David Benson 

Sukhpal Brar 

Patricia Jackson 

John Major 

June Nelson 

Mary O’Connor 

 
 
 

  
Published: Monday, 3 December 2012 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact: Charles Francis 
Tel: 01895 256454 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: cfrancis@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=247&Year=2012 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

 

Policy Overview 
 

About this Committee 
 
This Policy Overview Committee (POC) will undertake reviews in the areas of Social 
Services, Health & Housing and can establish a working party (with another POC if 
desired) to undertake reviews if, for example, a topic is cross-cutting.  
 
This Policy Overview Committee will consider performance reports and comment on 
budget and service plan proposals for the Council’s Adult Social Care, Health and Housing 
Department.  
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda.  
 
The Committee will not consider call-ins of Executive decisions or investigate individual 
complaints about the Council’s services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Terms of Reference 
 
To perform the following policy overview role: 
 
1. conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service which have either been 

referred by Cabinet, relate to the Cabinet Forward Plan, or have been chosen by the 
Committee according to the agreed criteria for selecting such reviews; 

 
2. monitor the performance of the Council services within their remit (including the 

management of finances and risk); 
 
3. comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for the Council services 

within their remit before final approval by Cabinet and Council; 
 
4. consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on Key 

Decisions which relate to services within their remit (before they are taken by the 
Cabinet); 

 
5. review or scrutinise the effects of decisions made or actions taken by the Cabinet, a 

Cabinet Member, a Council Committee or an officer. 
 

6. make reports and recommendations to the Council, the Leader, the Cabinet or any 
other Council Committee arising from the exercise of the preceding terms of reference. 

 
In relation to the following services: 
 
1. social care services for elderly people, people with physical disabilities, people with 

mental health problems and people with learning difficulties; 
 
2. provision of meals to vulnerable and elderly members of the community; 
 
3. Healthy Hillingdon and any other health promotion work undertaken by the Council 

and partners to improve the health and well-being of Hillingdon residents; 
 
4. asylum seekers; 
 
5. the Council’s Housing functions including: landlord services (currently provided by 

Hillingdon Homes), private sector housing, the ‘Supporting People’ programme, 
benefits, housing needs, tenancy allocations and homelessness and to recommend 
to the Cabinet any conditions to be placed on the exercise of the delegations by 
Hillingdon Homes. 

 
Policy Overview Committees will not investigate individual complaints. 
 



 
 
 
 

 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1 Apologies for Absence and to report the presence of any substitute 

Members 
 

 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2012 1 - 4 
 

4 To confirm that the items of business marked in Part I will be 
considered in Public and that the items marked Part II will be 
considered in Private 

 
 

5 Adult Community Mental Health Services - Draft Report Framework & 
Draft Recommendations 

5 - 38 
 

6 Housing and Benefit Changes and the Impact on Hillingdon 
Residents from January 2013 Scoping Report - To follow 

 
 

7 Work Programme 39 - 42 
 

8 Forward Plan 43 - 56 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
 
SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HOUSING 
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 

7 November 2011 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   
Councillors: Cllr Judith Cooper 

Cllr Peter Kemp 
Cllr Wayne Bridges 
Cllr Sukphal Brar 
Cllr Pat Jackson 
Cllr John Major 
Cllr June Nelson 
Cllr Mary O’Connor 
 

 OFFICERS PRESENT:   
Linda Sanders (Director Social Care, Health and Housing) 
Alan Coe (Mental Health Consultant, working for the Social Care, Health and 
Housing Department) 
Andrew Thiedeman (Service Manager Mental Health) 
Anne Otesanya – (Neighbourhood Housing Services Manager) 
Sarah Hollingsworth – (Telecare Line and Re-ablement Project Manager) 
Daniel Kennedy – (Manager – Performance and Intelligence) 
Charles Francis (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Also present: 
Sandra Brookes (CNWL) 
Joan Vessey (CNWL) 
Fiona Davies (Mental Health Commissioning Manager) 
Dr Ellis Friedman – (PCT / LBH  Director of Public Health) 
 

    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE OF 
ANY SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 Cllr David Benson substitute Cllr Wayne Bridges 
 

    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS 
MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 Cllr Peter Kemp declared non-pecuniary interests as a member of the Board 
of CNWL and as a member of Trustees of Hillingdon MIND 
 
Cllr Mary O’Connor declared a non-pecuniary interest as the Chairman of 
Hillingdon MIND 
 

    TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9 OCTOBER 
2012  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  

 2 

  
The minutes of 9 October 2012 meeting were agreed as a correct record. 
 

    TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED IN PART I 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED 
PART II WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 All items were considered in Part 1 with the exception of Item 5 which was 
moved into Part II 
 

    ADULT COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES – WITNESS 
SESSION 1  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 Part 1 minute:  
 
This Item was considered in Part 2 as it contained ‘information relating to an 
individual’. 
 
Resolved –  

1. That the Committee notes the information provided and 
use this to inform their review. 

2. That information be provided in relation to the national 
strategy and outcomes based commissioning 

3. That information be provided on the training and 
placement opportunities provided by CNWL to service 
users in recovery 

4. That dates be circulated and arrangements made to meet 
with Carers as part of the evidence gathering for the 
review 

5. That officers be requested to prepare draft 
recommendations and a draft framework of the 
committee’s final report to the next meeting. 

 
 SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND HOUSING – ANNUAL COMPLAINTS 

REPORT 2011/12 (Agenda Item 6) 
 
The Head of Performance and Intelligence ASC,HH introduced the report. 
The Department aimed to resolve problems raised by residents at the 
earliest opportunity and to learn positively from mistakes. 
 
It was noted that the number of housing complaints had fallen from 166 in 
2010/11 to 159 in 2011/12. In comparison, the number of adult social care 
complaints had increased from 51 in 2010/11 to 69 in 2011/12. Officers 
explained that this was in part, to a review of care packages that took place 
during 2011/12 which resulted in a number of clients being dissatisfied with 
their offer. 
 
During 2011/12, 15 complaints progressed to Stage 2 of the complaints 
procedure and four complaints progressed to Stage 3 of the complaints 
procedure which compared favourably with 2010/11 (4) and 2009/10 (3).  
 
Other actions to improve services and customer outcomes included: 
improving customer care and communications issues (including reviewing 

Page 2



  

 3 

written communications to customers), specific targeted action and visits to 
care providers and improved monitoring within Hillingdon Homes of their 
contracts. 
 
Members made the following comments: 

1. To congratulate officers on a clear and concise report. 
2. To endorse the early intervention strategy employed by officers when 

dealing with complaints. 
 
Resolved –  

1. That the report be noted. 
 

 THE USE OF ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY TO SUPPORT INDEPENDENT 
LIVING IN HILLINGDON – UPDATE ON REVIEW RECOMMENDATIONS 
(Agenda Item 6) 

  
The Telecare and Re-ablement Project Manager introduced the report and 
provided an update on the progress of the Committee’s recommendations 
from their 2010/11 review.  
 
The following points were noted: 

• The target for the number of new clients taking up the service for 
2011/12 was 750.  This target was exceeded with 1,178 new users 
joining the service during 2011/12.   

• Although this was the first year, take up was very encouraging 
particularly amongst the older population 

 
Evidence of savings achieved to date 

• Data showed that a significant reduction in new long term residential 
and nursing care placements in 2011/12; the average falling from 
8.08/week in 2010 to 3.77/week to end of March 2012; this included 
all adult social care placements. 

• The number of people currently in receipt of long term 
Residential/Nursing placements for Older People had significantly 
reduced and in total the headcount was now at its lowest level since 
April 2009, representing a reduction of 112 placements since October 
2010 

• Evidence of the effectiveness of TeleCareLine and Reablement could 
also be measured by a reduction in spend of £460k (to £7.9m) for 
Homecare purchased in 2011/12 when compared with 2010/11 

• An additional internal evaluation exercise was undertaken for a 
sample of new level 3 & 4 clients who joined the service between 1st 
April 2011 & 31st March 2012.  The analysis covered 195 clients and 
the considered the impact of TCL on supporting their needs for the 
period from the point the service was installed to 31st March 12.  The 
results indicated: 

1. 48% of cases are considered to be assisting in delaying the 
demand for further services 

2. 10% have enabled a delay in residential care placements 
3. 42% have facilitated a smaller homecare package 

 
 
 

Page 3



  

 4 

Resolved – 
 

1. That the report be noted 
 

 WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Reference was made to the work programme and timetable of meetings.  
 
With reference to 4 December 2012 meeting, the Committee agreed to 
move this to 11 December 2012. 
 
Resolved –  
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Committee considered the Forward Plan from November 2012 to 
February 2013. 
 
Resolved -  

1. Cabinet Item 741a – Hillingdon Housing Strategy 2012-2015 
Policy Framework: To request officers to provide a briefing note 
on the item 

2. Cabinet Item 813 – Tenancy Strategy: To request officers to 
provide a briefing note on the item 

3. Cabinet Member Decision Item 834 – Anti-Social Behaviour 
Policy for Tenants and Leaseholders: To request officers to 
provide a briefing note on the item.  

4. Cabinet Member Decision Item 835 – Domestic Violence 
Procedures for Housing Staff: To request officers to provide a 
briefing note on the item.  

 
 The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.40 pm. 

 
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any 
of the resolutions please contact Charles Francis on 01895 556454.  
Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and 
Members of the Public. 
 
 

 

Page 4



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee – 11 December 2012     

 
 

MAJOR REVIEWS IN 2012/13 - DRAFT - REPORT FRAMEWORK AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
ADULT COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES  
 

 Contact Officer: Alan Coe  
Telephone: x 0722 

REASON FOR ITEM   
  
For the Committee to consider a draft report framework for this review and to consider its 
draft recommendations prior to submission to the Cabinet (attached separately as  
Annex A). 
  
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE   
  

1. To accept the draft report framework as drafted  
2. To amend, add or delete parts of the draft report framework. 
3. To agree the draft report recommendations as drafted 
4. To amend or delete the draft report recommendations 

  
 
INFORMATION 
 
Background 
 

1. At the 19 June 2012 meeting, the Policy and Overview Committee agreed to 
review adult community mental health services. 

 
2. At previous meetings held in September, October and November, the Committee 

received evidence from a variety of witnesses. In early November, the Committee 
also conducted site visits to a number of community mental resources to inform its 
review. 

 
3. The Committee will be conducting a further site visit in December to hear from 

Carers and these views will need to be incorporated into the draft final report 
 

4. Attached is a draft report framework incorporating draft recommendations for the 
Committee’s consideration. 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee – 11 December 2012     

 
 

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY  
 

• To consider whether the draft report framework takes account of the evidence, 
advice received by the Committee. 

 
• To consider whether any changes would improve the clarity of the report. 

 
• To agree the recommendations of the report. 

Page 6



Contents

Chairman’s Foreword......................................................................................................  

Summary of Recommendations.....................................................................................  

Introduction......................................................................................................................

Reason for review and terms of reference ...................................................................

Methodology.................................................................................................................  

Background......................................................................................................................

x

     x 
     x 
     x 

Findings & Recommendations…………………………………………………………….. 

     x 

     x 

     x  

Closing Word ...................................................................................................................

Page 7



Chairman’s Foreword 
To add

Cllr Judith Cooper 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 2 
Page 8



Summary of Recommendations 
This review examines adult community mental health services in Hillingdon. 
Following the evidence received, we make the following recommendations. 

Possible areas for recommendations

That the Mental Health Partnership: -

1. Produces a report for Councillors on the views and experiences of 
mental health service users and carers and how they have been 
acted upon. 

2. Identifies ways of ensuring a consistent / universal response from 
GP surgeries in relation to mental health issues. Consideration 
should be given to applying the advice on prescription model 
used by St Helen’s. 

3. Produces plans to review ways to the effectiveness of the Well-
Being Centre and identify ways to ensure improved early access 
to mental health services. 

4. Reviews current arrangements to support service users and 
carers in a crisis and produce recommendations to provide an 
improved and integrated service .

5. Identifies current informal support services in the Borough and 
develops mechanisms to support them in their task through 
publicity, advice and information. 

6. That officers be requested to further improve the links between 
Mental Health Services and the Council’s Housing Teams 
including:

• identifying a link worker in each community team to work with 
housing lead officer. 

• establishing regular forums:- to discuss and explore appropriate 
housing options for those particularly difficult service users in the 
community who may end up being evicted due 
to mental health issues, but who still require accommodation 
which is not supported or residential due to vulnerability.  

• Improving joined up working to sustain tenancies 

7. Establishes a formal relationship between senior managers in 
libraries and leisure and Mental Health Services to ensure consistent 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 3 
Page 9



and continued support of service users and carers in community 
settings.

8. Uses the 2013/15 Commissioning Plan as a basis for shifting 
resources towards community support and to reduce the reliance on 
high cost residential care (placements). 

9. Works in partnership to more consistently challenge stigma against 
mental Health service users, and produce a realistic programme 
projecting positive images of mental health. 

10. Ensures there are effective mechanisms to enable Voluntary Sector 
Organisations to improve co-ordination and to share best practice. 

11.  Promotes the greater use of Assistive Technology (Telecare and 
medicine) to support and enhance the daily lives of mental health 
service users. 

12. That the Council as an employer, identifies ways of better supporting 
people with mental Health problems (issues) back into work. 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 4 
Page 10



Introduction
Reason for review and terms of reference: 

There is a growing acceptance that the promotion of mental health and well 
being and providing support to aid recovery from mental illness are important 
issues for both national and local government and health services. Good 
mental health is central to our quality of life and to our economic success. It is   
interdependent with our success in improving education, training and 
employment outcomes and tackling some of the persistent problems of 
society. Mental health problems of some form may affect as many as 1 in 4 of 
the population over their lifetime.  The associated costs of mental health 
problems to the economy in England have recently been estimated as £105 
billion, and treatment costs are expected to double in the next 20 years. 1

Despite widespread prevalence there remain issues of stigma. It is a 
particular problem and a major barrier to the use and take–up of services. As 
a result, people with mental health problems too often experience isolation, 
discrimination and a lack of acceptance by society.  Addressing this issue will 
be a central element of this review. 

The Council and NHS commission a wide range of community mental health 
services to meet the needs of people with mental health problems. Adult 
social care services are provided through a joint arrangement with Central 
and North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL). It is one of the 
largest Trusts in London, offering a wide range of health and social care 
services across ten boroughs.  CNWL specialises in caring for people with 
mental health problems, addictions and learning disabilities, as well as 
providing community health services to residents in Hillingdon and Camden 
and primary care services in a number of prisons. Social care staff are located 
in joint teams and are accountable to both managers within the Council and 
CNWL. This arrangement is underpinned by a formal partnership under 
Section 75 of the National Health Services Act 2006.

Traditionally services were often hospital-based. Increasingly both social care 
and health services reflect a growing trend towards community-based options 
that emphasise the importance of helping people gain or regain the skills and 
confidence to help them live a life in the community where they can realise 
both their social and economic potential. 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

                                           
1 No Health Without Mental Health – a cross government mental health strategy February 
2011

Page 5 
Page 11



Current funding levels for social care mental health services in Hillingdon are 
in line with those of comparator councils2. The Council also spends similar 
proportions of its budget on mental health as other similar London boroughs.  

The balance of current spending on mental health services reflects a relatively 
traditional model of care with disproportionately high expenditure on 
residential care and nursing homes.  There is a correspondingly low spend on 
home –based solutions such as support during the day including home care 
where it is the lowest within the same comparator group.  Work is already 
underway to rebalance care through reducing reliance on institutionalised 
care and support and substituting greater use of community options including 
personalised budgets supported housing and floating support for people 
within their own tenancies.  

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Improved mental well-being does not and should not rely upon social care 
support alone. We need to ensure that people with mental health difficulties 
can access the full range of mainstream services that promote greater social 
inclusion. This requires a whole-system response from the Council and 
partners.  This is reinforced by the Government’s recent White Paper3 where 
it says leisure centres, libraries, day centres and community centres ...’should
be open, inclusive and culturally sensitive venues. Promoting the innovative 
use of venues in our communities will help to reduce social isolation and 
increase connections.’ 

Already there are excellent examples of support provided through mainstream 
services.  Routinely occupational therapy and other staff assist service users 
in accessing a range of facilities that would be used by anyone for work, 
education, leisure, personal or social activities. These include sports facilities, 
gyms, swimming pools, leisure centres, Uxbridge college, education 
resources, libraries, community centres, religious organisations, 
cafes, voluntary organisations, and women's centres.

This review offers an opportunity to learn more of what works well and 
recommend more systematic approaches to implementation across the 
Council 

                                           

3 Caring for Our Future – reforming care and support - HM Government July 2012 

2 LIT Results of Financial Mapping 2011-12 – Hillingdon – Department of Health  

Page 6 
Page 12



The review sought to: 

To review and make recommendations in respect of supporting adults with 
mental health issues in Hillingdon.

Terms of Reference 

1. To consider existing internal and external arrangements in the Borough 
with regard to adult community mental health services and any 
improvements that could be made; 

2. To review whether the local processes in supporting adults in the 
community  with mental health services are adequate, timely, effective 
and cost efficient; 

3. To review the support that is currently available to assist people to 
remain in or return to employment

4. To review the guidance and support that is currently available from the 
NHS, voluntary organisations and the Council to these individuals and 
their families and carers; 

5. To seek out the views on this subject from service users, carers  and 
partner organisations using a variety of existing and contemporary 
consultation mechanisms; 

6. To improve awareness and understanding of adult mental health 
issues for staff working in mainstream services arranged or provided by 
the Council including housing, leisure, libraries and adult learning; 

7. To examine best practice elsewhere through case studies, policy ideas, 
witness sessions and visits; and

8. After due consideration of the above, to bring forward cost conscious, 
innovative and practical recommendations to the Cabinet in relation to 
adult mental health service arrangements in the Borough.  

Lines of enquiry 

To address the Terms of Reference, the Committee agreed the following lines of 
enquiry:

Identifying Needs and Early Identification 
1. How are people with mental health problems currently identified and 

supported across the Borough and how can this be improved and 
standardised, including support in a crisis?  

2. How good are local awareness, early identification and diagnosis? 

Information and support for users and carers 
3. What information, support and advice is available to those that may 

need it? How can this be improved? 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 7 
Page 13



4. What treatment and support and recovery services are available e.g 
CNWL Recovery College?

5. What support is available for the carers of adults with mental health 
issues? Is this support sufficient/ how could this be improved?

Enabling people to make choices, balancing risks and community 
involvement
6. How are service users’ and carers expectations and concerns reflected 

in local service delivery 
7. How are adults with mental health issues involved in their communities 

and civil society? 
8. How are issues of supporting people take exert choice and control  in 

their lives balanced against issues of potential risk the individual and 
wider community. 

Partnership Working
9. How well developed are local strategies and partnerships with regard 

to adult mental health issues? 
10. Are there any barriers to successful partnership working? 

Staff Training and Development 
11. What training is available to staff to properly assist them in support 

people with mental health difficulties 
12. How can education for professionals and carers be improved? 

Learning from best practice
13. Which other areas/councils are recognised as successful in supporting 

people with mental health needs in their local communities? 

Resources
14. What funding is available and how sufficient is this to meet the needs 

of the demand of the service required? 

Methodology: 

The Committee used three meetings to examine this issue. In September 
2012, officers from Adult Social Care and representatives from CNWL 
provided a verbal overview on mental health services in Hillingdon and 
referred to the 6 information packs which were circulated in the agenda. The 
Committee  also held three witness sessions to discuss and receive evidence 
relating to the review.

Meetings held in September and October with a further one in November 
involved taking evidence from a range of witnesses: 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 8 
Page 14



First Witness Session: 11th  September 2012 (example)

This first session (including an officer background report) provided an 
overview of adult community mental health services in Hillingdon.  This 
witness session also examined how services were delivered in partnership 
with CNWL. The witnesses included: 

 Sandra Brookes - Borough Director CNWL 
 Joan Vessey – Acting Borough Director, NHS Hillingdon 
 Fiona Davies – NHS Hillingdon 
 Alan Coe - Mental Health Consultant, working for the Social Care, 

Health and Housing Department 

Second Witness Session: 9th October 2012

This session examined …… 

Third Witness Session: 7th November 2010

The final session examined ….. 

Site Visits:

 In addition to formal evidence gathering in the committee setting, Members 
also went on several site visits. These included; 

 Mead House 
 Mill House 
 The Riverside Gym 
 The Uxbridge Bike Project 

(Hayes Methodist Church, Hayes End – visit to Carers supported by Rethink) 

The next section of the report provides background on the main issues, and then 
presents the main issues arising in our evidence. We then make recommendations 
to Cabinet, which we believe will address these issues.  

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 9 
Page 15



Background
Mental Health: An Overview 

Mental health is a complex issue which has serious ramifications for the 
community. According to the latest figures published in No Health without 
mental health, the total cost of mental illness in Britain is estimated to be 
about £100 million per annum but this does not include the human costs 
which is impossible to quantify. Statistically, mental illness will affect 25% of 
people at some stage in their lives and therefore most people will be affected 
directly or indirectly.  For those affected, the effects can be catastrophic and 
range from someone loosing their job, their home and or their independence. 
For these reasons it had long been argued that mental health should figure as 
a higher priority on the government agenda. 

In most cases, persons with mental health issues are treated entirely by their 
GP. Usually treatment involves a course of medication and, in some cases 
some form of counselling which can assist most people to recover. However 
in more severe cases,  specialist mental health services are employed and 
the way in service users  receive and access these services has under gone 
massive changes in recent times.

Further background about recent developments leading to the No Health with 
Mental Health guidance..

Xxx
xxx

Levels of Need in Hillingdon - Details taken from information packs:

The most common mental health problem in Hillingdon is anxiety and 
depressive disorders which affect over 50% of people with mental health 
problems It is estimated that in any given week, 10% of adults in Hillingdon 
will experience depression – higher than the England average (8%) but lower 
than the London average (11%) Overall, the need for inpatient services for 
severe mental illness in Hillingdon is 20% lower than the national average 
40%, whereas on average in London it is 60% higher. Although the mental 
health need in Hillingdon is lower than England as a whole, the picture fits 
with the national pattern of indicators and determinants that impact on mental 
health. Most admissions needing mental health treatment in Hillingdon come 
from the south of the Borough. These wards are predicted to a higher 
population increase in areas already more densely populated and more 
deprived. On average, these localities show higher social determinants:

•Lower educational attainment 
•More unemployment 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 10 
Page 16



•More crime 

The scale of the challenge is set to escalate with the inequality gap widening 
in both life expectancy and quality of life.  
Information on acute admission rates and comparisons with other 
Boroughs.Hillingdon  

Early Intervention 

The Provision of Services in Hillingdon 

Community mental health services in Hillingdon are delivered jointly through 
an integrated health and social care service. Joint teams include a 
combination of Consultant psychiatrists, social workers and community psychiatric 
nurses (CPNs). Services are arranged under Service Lines – which is a 
consistent format that cuts across all the London Boroughs that the Central and 
North-West London Mental Health Foundation Trust (CNWL) serves.  

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 11 
Page 17



Findings & Recommendations 
1 Identifying Needs and Early Identification, Learning 
from best practice, Resources 

We started our review by examining by looking at an overview of how mental 
health services are delivered jointly through the Council and Central and 
North West London Foundation Trust (CNWL).  

A narrative to be inserted about the witness session discussions and 
arising recommendation/s 

Minutes from 11 September included for reference

The Interim Deputy Director, Social Services, Health and Housing introduced 
the report and explained that the first witness session aimed to address the 
following lines of enquiry: 

 Identifying Needs and Early Identification 
 Learning from best practice 
 Resources. 

The witnesses in attendance were: 
 Sandra Brookes - Borough Director CNWL 
 Joan Vessey – Acting Borough Director, NHS Hillingdon 
 Fiona Davies – NHS Hillingdon 
 Alan Coe - Mental Health Consultant, working for the Social Care, 

Health and Housing Department 

Sandra Brookes provided an overview of the six information packs which were 
included in the agenda. This was followed by a question and answer session. 
The following points were noted: 

Information Pack 1 – National Context – Summary of No Health without 
Mental Health 

 The way forward: No Health Without Mental Health: a cross-
government mental health strategy for people of all ages: Translating 
Vision into Reality consisted of 6 elements which were: 

1. More People have better mental health 
2. More people will recover 
3. Better physical health 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 12 
Page 18



4. Positive experience of care and support 
5. Fewer people will suffer avoidable harm 
6. Fewer people experience stigma and discrimination 

 Health and well-being was an important aspect of the strategy which 
linked a healthy body and mind together. 

 Referring to the IAPT4 recovery rate Programme, it was noted that 
access to physiological therapy and early intervention were vital to 
assist people with mental health issues to stay in employment, which in 
turn made a valuable contribution to reducing stigma and 
discrimination.

 An evidence based approach was taken to mental health service 
provision. It was important to ensure that users and carer’s 
experiences were incorporated into the services delivered jointly by the 
Council and CNWL. 

Information Pack 2 – Contextual Information for Hillingdon – data 
informing a new Commissioning Plan 

 The priorities for NHS Hillingdon and the London Borough of Hillingdon 
included:

1. Promoting healthier lifestyles 
2. Improved co-ordination of joint health and social care working 
3. Safeguarding, prevention and protection 
4. Community based, resident focused services 
5. Promoting economic resilience 
6. Preserving and protecting the natural environment 
7. Reducing disparities in health 

 A key challenge for the new Commissioning Plan would be the focus 
on the national context, and moving away from secondary care to 
primary care 

Information Pack 3 – Performance Data 
 In relation to the following performance targets: 

1. 7-day follow up 
2. CPA reviews 
3. Delayed Transfers of Care 
4. Gatekeeping 
5. New EIS Cases 
6. NHS Data completeness 
7. Home Treatment episodes 
8. Self directed support 
9. Placement reviews 
10. Assessment waiting times 
11. Carers assessments 
12. Service Users receiving review 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

                                           
4 IAPT - Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 

Page 13 
Page 19



It was noted that overall performance had improved over the past 3 years and 
in particular work around home treatments and early interventions had gone 
well. A series of action plans had been introduced to address Self Directed 
Support, Placement reviews, Carers Assessments and Social Care Reviews. 

Information Pack 4 – Access to Services & Information Pack 5 –
Organisational Structure

 It was noted that CNWL had been reconfigured into the following 10 
Service Lines: 

1. Acute Service Line – including acute beds / care unit / home 
treatment – The aim is to provide intensive support to try and reduce 
hospital admissions 

2. Rehabilitation Service Line * - a particular focus of this review
3. Assessment and Brief Treatment Service Line – It is hoped that this 

reconfiguration will improve access to services. * - a particular focus of 
this review 

4. Community Recovery Service Line – Focusing on developing 
functional social lives and support networks for service users. * - a 
particular focus of this review

5. Psychological Medicine Service Line 
6. Addiction Service Line 
7. Older Adults & Health Ageing Service Line 
8. CAMHS service Line 
9. Offender Care Line Service 
10. Learning Disabilities Service Line 

Liaison services were a new service area. These were being developed 
further with the aim of reducing secondary mental health care needs. 

Hillingdon was unique amongst London Boroughs in that Heathrow Airport 
posed a series of challenges especially in relation to detention centres. 

Crisis Provision
In relation to crisis provision, the Committee heard that a Community Team 
was in place if this was required within office hours. Outside these hours 
provision included: 

 The NHS111 phone number for emergency and care services which 
were less urgent than 999 calls 

 General Practioner services 
 Accident and Emergency services 
 Emergency Out of Hours Team 

The Committee were informed that Needs and Early Intervention work was 
being conducted in partnership between the Council, CNWL and GP surgeries 
across the borough to increase this support. It was noted that the Well-Being 
Centre had a role to play in signposting service provision, as well as providing 
some services, and it was acknowledged there were further opportunities to 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 14 
Page 20



highlight this resource. The valuable role the voluntary sector played in 
identifying need and especially early need was also emphasised. 

It was noted that The Director and Interim Deputy Director were currently 
looking at a new structure for providing Mental Health Services across the 
Borough. The new Directorate structure introduced a new post of Service 
Manager Mental Health whose job it would be to ensure a more effective 
operational and strategic link between the council, NHS and voluntary sector 
partners.

Information Pack 6 – National examples of best practice 
 Reference was made to a number of examples of best practice from 

across the country which had been highlighted in the Health Services 
Journal national awards in mental health. These included: 
1. Home Treatment Service – an award winning project in Scotland – 

shifting the balance of care from hospital to home support5 for 
people with severe mental health issues. 

2. The ‘How Long Would You Wait’ initiative – pioneered at the 
Cornwall Partnership FT - a campaign raising awareness about 
psychosis and encouraging family, friends and work colleagues to 
reach out  and provide assistance early on. 

3. The Proactive Intervention to Enhance Recovery (PIER) project – 
aiming to involve young people (aged 14 to 35 years) who were 
experiencing psychosis in designing and creating resources 
(including on-line resources) to make information about the 
condition more accessible to this age group. 

4. Mental Health Gateway Workers: Promoting Positive mental health 
Cardiff and Vale University Health Board – The aim of gateway 
workers was to bridge the gap between primary and secondary care 
using a stepped care approach 

5. Advice on Prescription: a partnership approach to improving mental 
health and wellbeing – based at NHS Halton and St Helens – an 
initiative aiming to fasttrack people visiting their GP who have 
mental health problems due to social welfare issues into more 
appropriate support services than psychological therapies. 

6. The CNWL Recovery College – Based at Central and North West 
London NHS Foundation Trusts headquarters near Warren Street. 
This was an innovative educational facility, providing recovery 
focused education for people with mental health issues and those 
also in receipt of addictions and learning disability services. 

In relation to the IAPT programme, Members asked how the London Borough 
of Hillingdon compared to other London Boroughs in terms of resources. In 
response, Sandra Brookes explained that CNWL were moving  resources into 
this area but CNWL were 2 to 3 years behind other boroughs

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 15 
Page 21



In terms of the early diagnosis of disorders, Members heard that CNWL could 
commission these services but that these services were special out services 
which were commissioned in. 

During discussions about the out of hours in a crisis service, Sandra Brookes 
confirmed that service users were encouraged to contact an advice centre 
and signposting from here might include a referral to A & E or a Social 
Services Team. It was noted that CNWL did not have a crisis team but were 
taking steps to enhance the out of hours service and put in place a single 
telephone number to help people, thereby creating a more consistent service. 

In response to a question about whether crisis calls and their eventual 
outcomes were tracked, Members heard that telephone calls were recorded 
but that outcomes were not tracked. Officer’s confirmed that the Council’s 
Emergency Duty Team did include mental health professionals or had access 
to them. With respect to the single telephone number for those people in 
crisis, it was confirmed that there was close liaison between the Community 
Nurse and Out of Hours Service in relation to these calls for assistance. 

It was noted that carers often played a vital role in assisting persons in crisis. 
In terms of prevention, Members heard that all service users were provided 
with crisis cards which recorded some personal details and included 
information about whom to contact if the person were in crisis.  It was noted 
that the carers in Hillingdon were in the process of developing their own crisis 
card so that , in the event of an emergency where they could not provide care, 
others would know what support was needed for the relative or friend they 
supported.

Members agreed that it was vital there was support immediately after a period 
of crisis to ensure the person felt able to return to work as quickly as possible.
It was highlighted that working within the voluntary sector for a period of time 
could help build confidence and provide support networks to persons in 
recovery.

Sandra Brookes explained that there were further opportunities for CNWL to 
engage with GPs and in particular to develop the commissioning role played 
by GPs. Members also highlighted that one of the key roles played by GPs 
was at the early intervention stage and there was scope to enhance this area. 
Members were pleased to hear that progress on this front had been made at 
the Mental Health Delivery Group. 

Members highlighted that one specific area which required further attention 
was the eating disorder groups which did not appear to have a voice at forum 
meetings. Sandra Brookes reported that access to psychologists in Hillingdon 
had improved which would help identify needs at an earlier stage. 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Officer’s reported that over the last 18 months, partnership working between 
the Council and CNWL had improved and that the new Service Manager post 

Page 16 
Page 22



would act as a focal point for liaison between the Council and CNWL to 
enhance joint working. 

In response to a question about what aftercare was available to carers and 
the families of mental health patients, Members heard that CNWL would 
appoint a member of staff to liaise with the family, either through a series of 
telephone calls, or, in some cases, through home visits. There were also a 
range of funded carers groups and Rethink offered a service particularly for 
people with mental health problems.

Members highlighted that the Well-Being Centre (located within the Boots 
Chemist on Uxbridge High Street) provided a fantastic service and there was 
an opportunity to publicise and promote what it did. Sandra Brookes 
confirmed that the IAPT was based at the Well Being Centre and this needed 
to be expanded. Members highlighted that St Margaret’s Church was also a 
valuable resource to people with mental health issues and it was important 
that services, information and guidance was available to service users at 
those locations. 

In response to a question about the possible ways in which the Council might 
assist CNWL deliver improved Mental Health Services, the following 
suggestions were proposed: 

1. Implementing a new Council structure to deliver mental health services 
in Hillingdon, overseen by a new post would strengthen service 
provision

2. Exploring further ways of working between CNWL and the Council’s 
Housing Teams to look at housing needs and accommodation options 

3. Exploring those opportunities for CNWL to work in partnership with the 
Council’s Leisure and Recreation services to develop the inclusion and 
recovery agenda (especially looking at the work of libraries as local 
resources).

In relation to the final suggestion, the Director of Social Care, Health and 
Housing confirmed that her Department had been working closely with the 
Planning, Education, Environment and Children’s Services to look at ways in 
which services could be delivered in the future. It was noted that the Council 
did not have a books on prescription service for example, but there were lots 
of instances where there were opportunities for greater joint working. Fiona 
Davies from NHS Hillingdon confirmed that she was aware of a project called 
Getting into Reading and that Hillingdon MIND also ran a scheme. 

In terms of engaging with volunteers, and in particular those from ethnic 
minority backgrounds, Members heard that Hillingdion MIND were the leaders 
in this field and had successfully developed links across different 
communities.

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 17 
Page 23



Resources

In terms of resources, it was noted that Hillingdon was in the third quartile for 
spend and this was just below 2010 levels. However, there had been 
increased investment recently and NHS Hillingdon had become more 
outcomes focused. 

Speaking in general terms, it was noted that set against NHS Targets, NHS 
Hillingdon was broadly meeting its outcome against spend.

Joan Vesey reported that the Clinical Commissioning Group were looking at 
profiling the current economic spend to try and match resources to those 
areas which required additional funding. However, this was not an easy task 
and involved redesigning patient pathways. Linda Sanders explained that the 
Council were looking at an integrated approach to commissioning and that 
resources were focused on people in community based care rather than 
expensive residential care facilities. Councillors would learn more about 
housing support services contributed to this shift next time. Officers reported 
that the Mental Health Partnership Board, which consisted of Council and 
CNWL representatives, was looking at a ‘whole family approach’ to delivering 
Mental Health services in Hillingdon. In the current financial climate, it was 
acknowledged that any change programme would have cost implications and 
it was important that officers demonstrated affordability and efficiency savings. 

Joan Vesey confirmed that when an assessment was being made about 
improving outcomes, NHS Hillingdon would examine both the required 
outcome and the timeframe to achieve this as well as the pathway. 

Alan Coe reported that the recent change in the structure of CNWL helped 
support the shift towards supporting more people at home and fewer in 
institutional settings. . Recent reviews had highlighted that cost savings could 
be made by helping people move towards regaining their independence more 
quickly than they had in the past. The placement efficiency programme had 
identified where further appropriate transfers into the community could be 
achieved and also cost savings. 

In response to a question about the size and efficiency of the Mental Health 
Services budgetary spend, officers reported that historically this had not been 
as effective as possible. However there were clear plans to improve this. 
Officers were looking at a range of innovative options through the 
personalisation programme so that persons in residential care home settings 
could consider alternative options to give them greater choice and control. 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

In relation to the topic of reducing stigma associated with mental illness, 
Members heard that at this stage, nothing had been done systematically 
across Councils. However, one of the outcomes of the review might be what 
Hillingdon could do as a Council and across partnerships to try and reduce 
this further. 

Page 18 
Page 24



In terms of future challenges, the Committee heard that moving away from 
risk adverse practice and encouraging health professionals and service users 
alike to consider taking informed risks was a fundamental shift in practice. 

Resolved –

That the evidence provided be used to inform the findings of the review.

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 19 
Page 25



2 Local Strategies – translating policy into practice, 
partnership working, enhancing joint working 

A narrative to be inserted about the witness session discussions and 
arising recommendation/s 

Minutes from 9 October 

Alan Coe, Mental Health Consultant  introduced the report and explained that 
the second witness session aimed to address the following lines of enquiry: 

Local strategies – translating policy into practice 
Partnership working 
Enhancing joint working 

The witnesses in attendance were: 
 Sandra Brookes - Borough Director CNWL 
 Fiona Davies – NHS Hillingdon 
 Alan Coe - Mental Health Consultant, working for the Social Care, 

Health and Housing Department 
 Angela Manners – Rethink 
 Diego Duarte – Rethink 
 Jill Patel – Hillingdon MIND 
 Khalid Rashid (Customer Management Team – Manager) 
 Herbie Mann (Housing Options – Team Leader) 
 Sinead Mooney (Older People, Housing Services – Housing Manger) 

Both voluntary sector organisations provided presentations. This was followed 
by presentations from CNWL and the Housing Options Team. At the end of 
each topic a question and answer session was held. The following points 
were noted:

Rethink
Rethink North West London Carer Support Service is an organisation which 
works to support families and friends of adults experiencing mental illness in 
the London Boroughs of Hillingdon and Ealing. Aiding the support and 
recovery of families and friends affected by mental illness is a key aim. 
Rethink works with carers in a variety of ways to enable them to cope better 
with their difficult situations. 

The objectives of Rethink are: 
Objective 1: – To support recovery and social inclusion

1. To provide information, advice and support to carers of adults 
experiencing mental illness 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 20 
Page 26



2. To organise and facilitate carer support groups- Carer support groups 
help to reduce isolation and stress amongst Carers, improve social 
networks and provide access to information and support.  

3. To organise and facilitate respite opportunities. –In the last 6 months 
Rethink have organised a number of respite outings for carers 
including: 

 a guided tour of the Palace of Westminster 
 pantomime visits 
 an organised tour of RAF Northolt  

4. To develop participation and involvement of people using our service in 
the planning and delivery of activities. 

5. To facilitate Carers Education and Training Programmes (CETP). 
6. To ensure that our service is open to all and recognises diversity 
7. To continue to work in partnership with other organisations and on new 

initiatives. 

Objective 2: To combat the stigma and discrimination experienced by 
people affected by severe mental illness 

1. To promote the service. -Rethink produce a regular newsletter, which 
contains useful information about mental health issues, caring and 
events taking place.

2. To signpost carers to other relevant organisations. A key role of 
Rethink is its regular work with Carers and Carers who are often 
referred to other services such as Hillingdon Carers, Citizens Advice 
Bureau and for a Carers Assessment. We also regularly invite other 
services to attend our groups to provide information to Carers about 
their services. 

3. To promote Rethink membership and campaigns. This takes place on 
an on-going basis and has been promoted recently in the newsletter, 
as has the Time to Change anti-stigma campaign. New referrals to the 
service and anyone leaving the service, are also encouraged to 
become members so that they can become more involved in the work 
of Rethink Mental Illness and help everyone affected by severe mental 
illness.

Objective 3: To continue to develop a caring organisation that is dynamic, 
ambitious and fit for the future

1. To continue to develop staff and volunteers. 
2. To ensure that our service runs on budget. 
3. To monitor the impact and satisfaction of the service. 

Planned Future Work
Rethink Mental illness is launching a new Rethink Information System and 
have developed new carer support planning tools. During the next six month 
period the service will be working on implementing these tools which we hope 
will enhance and add to the service we already provide.  

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 21 
Page 27



Hillingdon MIND 
Vision - A society that promotes and protects good mental health for all, and 
that treats people with experiences of mental distress fairly, positively, and 
with respect. 

Hillingdon MIND comprises of a group of users and ex-users of mental health 
services, professionals and interested individuals who share a concern about 
the lives of mentally or emotionally distressed people in the community.
Hillingdon Mind takes a overarching view of people's mental health and 
emotional wellbeing.

Through projects and services Hillingdon MIND aims to:
 prevent isolation,  
 offer talking therapies,  
 enable social inclusion,  
 arrange housing opportunities,  
 and provide services specific to different cultures.   

Role and Activities include: 
 A variety of training options 
 run sports and leisure activities,  
 Opportunities for volunteering, and can provide assistance to those 

with mental health needs arrested by the Police. 

Hillingdon MIND recognise the diversity of Hillingdon's multi-cultural 
community and aim to set examples of good practice by listening to service 
users and providing imaginative, innovative and quality services which meet 
their expressed needs and help people gain some control over their own lives. 

Clubs run by Hillingdon MIND offer: 

 company, friendship and support for those feeling isolated, lonely or 
who are recovering from a mental health issue.   

 access to computers, printers and a TV room 
 various arts, crafts, and board games are available.
 outings and social events 

Funded by Heathrow Community and Environment Awards. Café Mind is a 
new social enterprise scheme. The café is run by Hillingdon Mind's service 
users. This provides an opportunity to learn new skills in catering and 
customer care.

In relation to other schemes, Hillingdon MIND explained that the ‘Better with 
Books’ project based at Yeading Library had proved popular in the past and 
they were disappointed that this service had disappeared. It was noted that 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 22 
Page 28



Yeiwsley Library was currently closed for refurbishment but it was suggested 
that the new Hayes End Library might be used to restart this service, 

The Committee heard that Rethink and Hillingdon MIND had worked together 
in the past but no longer did. Members felt there was an opportunity to 
develop local partnerships to highlight what each organisation did and to bring 
residents and carers together. 

Responding to a question about referrals and what the eventual outcomes 
were, the Committee heard that Rethink took a recovery based approach and 
considered the carers’ role and what they did. One of their key roles was to 
provide assistance with housing issues. At present Rethink were looking at 
the Hayes Group and ways of diversifying this as well as investigating how the 
age and gender composition of this might be broadened. It was noted that 
very few men attended therapy groups. 

Hillingdon MIND explained they had about 850 service users. In terms of 
outcomes, MIND offered service users a safe place to meet and gain 
confidence through projects such as food / catering training and mental health 
first aid. It also encouraged service users to become involved with voluntary 
work to gain further confidence and assisted them with the transition from 
voluntary work back to the work place. 

Concentrating on outcomes and how each organisation measured success, 
Rethink explained that measuring success was not an exact science as 
service users often had a number of issues which could not be resolved in a 
single meeting. Based on their experience, Members heard that most service 
users were guided through a series of structured questions which could take 
up to six separate meetings. Following these meetings, and based on the 
responses received, an action plan would be drawn up which would then act 
as a monitoring tool so that personal development and progression could be 
assessed.

The Committee were informed that another indicator of success was how both 
organisations contributed to a reduced number of hospital readmissions and 
the role they played in ensuring that service users were registered with their 
local GP so that other health needs such as obesity or diabetes could be 
addressed. Rethink also referred to the databases they held to monitor 
service users progress and the service level agreements they had in place 
with the Council to ensure they delivered the services that Hillingdon residents 
valued. Officers confirmed that  the Council was working with both Rethink 
and Hillingdon MIND on a number a carer assessments. 

In response to a question about partnership working with schools, the 
Committee heard that Hillingdon MIND had provided some teachers with 
mental health first aid training and that they had also held training sessions 
with 5th and 6th formers at some secondary schools.

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 23 
Page 29



During the course of discussions, the Committee explained that they were 
aware there were a number of hard to reach groups and engaging with them 
had proved a challenge given that some communities viewed mental health 
needs as a social taboo. Members were encouraged to learn that Hillingdon 
MIND were actively working with Asian, Somali, Nepalese and Afghani 
groups. Hillingdon MIND confirmed that they had been working with Somali 
groups for the last 18 months through partnership working with Surhan? 

Members highlighted that it many cases, service users with mental health 
issues often had underlying physical health needs which needed to be 
addressed. To meet these needs, the Committee were encouraged to learn 
that Rethink were planning on inviting nurses to events in the future so that 
that basic health checks including weight, height and blood sugar levels could 
be conducted. 

CNWL
(How adult community mental health services use community facilities) 

• Use of community facilities is historical and not new. 
• Supports Recovery and Social Inclusion. 
• Meets individuals occupational goals e.g. Social, Leisure, Vocational 

and Self care. 
• Enables individuals to return to, and participate in, their community 

What type of Facilities do we use?
• Anything and everything that meets an individuals Recovery goals. 
• Aim is to support full participation in the community and life in general. 
• We take a systems approach. Every person is seen as part of a 

system; including their community 

Some examples of groups
• Football Group at Brunel University 
• Sports group at Uxbridge Lido sports hall 
• Fitness group at Bailey Hall in Uxbridge 
• Individual gym sessions at Uxbridge Lido gym 
• Wellness and Recovery group at Wellbeing centre 
• Walking group in local parks and footpaths 
• Batik group in the Compass Theatre in Ickenham 
• IT group in Ruislip Manor library 
• Men’s group in Christchurch 
• Anxiety management and Assertion and Self esteem groups in the 

Wellbeing centre 

Some individual examples
• Libraries (an excellent resource) 
•  Shops 
• Cafes 
• Local employers 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

• Leisure and sports facilities 

Page 24 
Page 30



• Religious organisations 
• College/ education facilities 
• Voluntary organisations 
• Green spaces 
• Public transport 

Challenges:
• These are minimal. 
• Occasionally staff attitude within community facilities (rare - but has 

occurred).
• Cost of hire of community venues. 
• Availability of suitable community venues for groups (more needed for 

the implementation of Recovery courses locally) 
• Travel within borough.
• Cost of facilities for service users (reduced with a leisure link card) 
• Bike project has outgrown current premises. 
• Funding from council to develop bike project into a social enterprise 

Partners:
Projects have been undertaken in partnership with for
example:

• MIND 
• HAVS 
• Healthy Hillingdon 
• Local libraries 
• Brunel University 
• Rethink and other carers groups 
• Uxbridge College 

Housing
(Housing needs and Options for persons with Mental Health Needs) 

What services do we provide?
• Advice – landlord/tenant, mortgage arrears, relationship breakdown, 

mediate within households, looking for accommodation 
• Manage the housing register 
• Homelessness assessment 
• Visit vulnerable customers at their home and liaison with hospital 

wards.
• Manage lettings to permanent, temporary or private sector housing. 
• Access arrangements for supported housing 

Assessment of service users with mental health needs?

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

• Care plan & risk assessment – helps to establish threshold for 
independent living in order to inform accommodation options – 
temporary accommodation, private rented and social housing 

Page 25 
Page 31



• Bed & Breakfast – to avoid bed blocking 
• Referral to floating support services - ILS, LookAhead and Hestia.
• Move on from supported housing (Hayes Park Lodge) 
• Attend bed management meetings at Riverside 
• Signpost to other appropriate agencies 

Mental Health Supported Housing and Floating Support Services
• Currently a total of 66 units of supported accommodation for people wit 

mental health needs 
• 25 units of short term support and 9 units of long term support provided 

by Look Ahead at Hayes Park Lodge, Hamlet Lodge and Hornbeam 
Road

• 32 units of short and long term supported accommodation provided by 
Hestia at Hutchings House, Cowley Road, Myddleton Road, Sidney 
Close, Ivybridge Close and Brambles Farm Drive. 

• 66 units of mental health floating support provided by Hestia to people 
living in independent accommodation across the borough 

Areas for improvement
• Improve existing links by identifying a link worker in each community 

team to work with housing lead officer. 
• Establish regular forums:- to discuss and explore appropriate housing 

options for those particularly difficult service users in the community 
who may end up being evicted due to mental health issues, but who 
still require accommodation which is not supported or residential due to 
vulnerability.  

• Greater need for joined up working to sustain tenancies 

Housing Support
The service is designed to help clients with advice and support in the following 
areas:

• Help with setting up their new home  
• Help to understand official letters and documents including their 

tenancy conditions 
• Help maximising benefit claims, budgeting, paying bills including rent, 

arrears or any other debts 
• Help to settle into their new community and to access local services 

including linking in with specialist support
• Helping clients to learn how to look after their home, including for some 

getting a handy person service 
• And much more but it is NOT hands on personal, clinical or health 

care, or professional counselling. 

Community Housing- Managing tenancies: 
• Community housing provide support and advice as well as taking 

appropriate enforcement action to resolve any tenancy and 
neighbourhood issues 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 26 
Page 32



• Refer tenants onto appropriate services including ILSS, community 
safety team, social services etc; to ensure appropriate support is 
offered

• Joined up working with key services such as mental health. 

Tenant Support
• 90% of tenants have a form of vulnerability 
• Common causes for tenancy failure during the probationary period are 

rent arrears, ASB 
• Probationary/secure tenancies 
• New tenant visits 
• Tenancy verifications. 

Sheltered Housing
• Residents to have the choice to live safe, healthy, independent lives in 

supportive schemes 
• Age 60 plus 
• 21 sheltered schemes across the Borough 
• Daily presence of a scheme manager 
• Focus on activities and support 

Extra Care Housing
• Residents have their own self-contained flat, with the reassurance of 

24 hour on site care and support services 
• Excellent shared facilities, including a café and dining area, lounge, 

garden, shop/kiosk, activity space, laundry and hairdressing.
• Independent living for over 55’swith a range of  physical, sensory and 

learning disabilities  

In response to a question about the number of supported housing units in the 
Borough, the Committee noted that 66 units were currently available for 
service users with very high support needs. Officers confirmed that an 
additional 420 units were planned and that the Council was working in 
partnership with CNWL on placement efficiencies to develop a wider 
supported housing sector. Robyn Doran confirmed that Hillingdon had more 
supported housing provision than neighbouring boroughs. 

Having been informed about the housing options available to persons with 
mental health issues, the Committee asked offices to provide further 
clarification about the reasons why rents arrears might accrue during a 
probationary tenancy period. Officers explained that service users not 
knowing how to access housing forms or understanding some of the 
questions asked were common factors. In some cases there were also 
ongoing issues around housing benefit claims. 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

The Committee agreed it was vital to ensure there was sufficient assistance 
available to all tenants at the outset of their tenancy to ensure all parties were 
aware of their obligations (as tenants).

Page 27 
Page 33



Concern was raised about the levels of support available to people with 
mental health needs across the borough and whether or not there were some 
areas which had less support than others. In response officers explained that 
occupational therapists worked borough wide and CNWL were looking at 
using existing community resources in innovative ways to ensure there was 
enhanced service provision. 

Referring to the large number of services provided by the Housing 
Department, Members were pleased to learn that a single point of contact 
would be established when the client registered with the Department. In those 
cases were the resident had mental health needs, the Committee learnt that 
an assessment would be conducted by a panel of health professionals at the 
outset of the housing application to ensure the most appropriate housing 
service was accessed. 

Given that the Housing Officer presentation cited that 90% of tenants had 
some degree of vulnerability, Members asked whether the community was 
necessarily the best place for recovery for someone with mental health needs. 
In response, the Committee heard that many persons with mental health 
needs had been through the acute service and then had progressed to 
housing options as their health had improved. Clearly a balance needed to be 
struck between an individual’s ability to cope and their housing needs but 
finding the most appropriate form of accommodation was about making links 
between recovery and the community as a whole. 
It was noted that Riverside and acute resource facilities provided clients with a 
controlled environment in which to take their medication. Concern was raised 
about those people with mental health needs which were non-compliant with 
their medication and whether there were ways of supporting them. In 
response, the Committee heard that CNWL were working with GP’s and 
partner organisations towards a community programme? It was suggested 
that the Recovery College could play an important role in educating services 
users, carers and attendees of the importance of taking prescribed medicines 
at the allotted times however, it was recognised that there would always be 
some people who would be non-compliant. 

Developing this theme further, it was recognised that there was a possibility 
that someone with acute issues might suffer a relapse and not be able to cope 
with A&E, medication or other underlying issues such as anti-social 
behaviour. Therefore moving persons in difficulty into emergency bed and 
breakfast accommodation might not be the best option. Officers explained that 
a clients Care Plan meant that where possible bed and breakfast 
accommodation would be avoided. However, in those cases where there were 
no other short term options available, the Council would seek self contained 
b&b accommodation and ensure that housing officers and out reach support 
visited to assist them. 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 28 
Page 34



Members were encouraged to learn that CNWL were in regular dialogue with 
the Council and held frequent meetings. To ensure mental health services 
improved in the future, CNWL explained the focus was on pre-planning. The 
Committee heard that there was an emphasis on raising staff awareness, 
asking the right questions and ensuring that services became involved well 
before issues reached crisis point. 

Resolved –

That the evidence provided be used to inform the findings of the review.

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

  

Page 29 
Page 35



Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 30 

3  Service Users / Partnership working 

Minutes from 7 November 2012 – circulated

A narrative to be inserted about the witness session discussions and 
arising recommendation/s 

4 Carers’ Views – Visit to be arranged 

A narrative to be inserted about the witness session discussions and 
arising recommendation/s 

5 Final meeting – Draft recommendations 
(alternative heading) 

At our final meeting, we examined ….

Page 36



Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 31 

  

Closing Word 
To be added. 

Page 37



Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee Major Review 
Adult Community Mental Health Services  - 2012/2013 

Page 32 

Background Documents 

Page 38



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
Social Services, Health and Housing POC - 7 November 2012 
 

WORK PROGRAMME AND MEETING DATES IN 2012/13 
 

Contact Officer: Charles Francis 
Telephone: 01895 556454 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward 
plans. This is a standard item at the end of the agenda. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings  
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews.  
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
 
All meetings to start at 7.00pm unless otherwise indicated.  
 

Meetings  Room 
  
19 June 2012 CR 5 
31 July 2012 CR 5 
11 September 2012 CR 5 
9 October 2012 CR 5 
7 November 2012 CR 6 
11 December 2012 CR 5 
30 January 2013 CR 5 
27 February 2013 CR 5 
27 March 2013 CR 5 
24 April 2013 CR 6 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 39



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
Social Services, Health and Housing POC - 11 December 2012  
 

Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee 
 
2012/13 DRAFT Work Programme 
 
Meeting Date Item 

Review Topics 2012/13 

Population Flows and the Impact on Housing 
Services in Hillingdon – Progress Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

19 June 2012 

Work Programme  

 
 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 - Scoping Report  and 
Discussions 

 Budget Planning Report for SSH&Hsg 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

31 July 2012 

Work Programme  

 
 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  First Review  

Witness Session 1 / Background report 

Annual Complaints Report  - SSCH&H – (moved to  
7 November) 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

11 September  2012 

 

 
 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  First Review  

Witness Session 2 

Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults – Annual Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

9 October 2012 
 
 

 

  

Page 40



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
Social Services, Health and Housing POC - 11 December 2012  
 

 
Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  First Review  

Information report & Witness Session 3 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 – Second Review 
Scoping report (provisional) – deferred to December 

Update on previous review recommendations 

Annual Complaints Report  - SSCH&H 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

7 November 2012 
 

Work Programme 

 
 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  First Review  

Draft Framework Report / Draft Recommendations 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 – Second Review 
Scoping report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

11 December 2012 

Work Programme 
  
 

Budget  

Cabinet Forward Plan 

30 January 2013 

Work Programme 

 
 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  Second Review  

Witness Session 1 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  First Review  

Final Report 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

27 February 2013 

Work Programme 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
Social Services, Health and Housing POC - 11 December 2012  
 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  Second Review  

Witness Session 2 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

27 March 2013 

Work Programme 

 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

24 April 2013 

Major Reviews in 2012/13 –  Draft Final Report 

 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 
Social Services, Health & Housing Policy Overview Committee – 11 December 2012     

 

 
FORWARD PLAN  –  DECEMBER 2012 TO MARCH 2013  
 

Contact officer: Charles Francis 
                      Telephone: x 6454 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 

To review the Cabinet Forward Plan of forthcoming executive decisions to be made and 
any items on a published Cabinet agenda (if applicable). 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

• To comment on items going to the Cabinet or Cabinet Members for decision.   
• Or to note the items and decide not to comment. 

 
INFORMATION 
 
The Forward Plan 
 
The Committee’s terms of reference enable it to monitor the Cabinet’s Forward Plan and 
comment, if required, to the relevant decision-maker (Cabinet or Cabinet Member) on 
future decisions within the Committee’s remit before they are made. Comments made by 
the Committee, depending upon publication timings, can be included within forthcoming 
reports to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member.  
 
The current edition of the published Forward Plan is attached showing those items that 
are within this Committee’s remit. The Forward Plan is published around the middle of 
each month (at least 28 clear days before the next Cabinet meeting) to comply with 
regulations around giving advance notice of future executive decisions.  
 
Committee Members can ask questions they have about a particular Forward Plan item 
in advance and if necessary, through the agreement of the Chairman, request an officer 
to be present at the Committee meeting to give advice. 
 
The Cabinet agenda 
 
If the Cabinet agenda has been published and the Committee meets before the date of 
the Cabinet meeting, the Committee is entitled to provide comments on a report under 
their remit to Cabinet. This is normally added to an addendum sheet tabled on the night 
of the Cabinet meeting . 
 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 

• To consider whether there are comments or suggestions that the Committee 
wishes to make that will aid Cabinet’s decision-making.  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

850 Joint Adult Mental 
Health 
Commissioning Plan 
2013 - 15

Cabinet will be asked to approve a joint commissioning 
plan for all adults with mental health needs, including 
dementia. The plan will outline the strategic direction 
and how the Council, the Hillingdon Clinical 
Commissioning Group and other partners will enable 
adults with mental health needs to achieve better 
outcomes.

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne 
& Cllr Scott 
Seaman-
Digby

CS / SC&H - 
Paul Feven

key 
stakeholders

New

839 Carers Respite at 
Home Contract - 
Contract extension 

As part of the range of support provided for carers, the 
Council has externally contracted its Respite at Home 
service. The contract for these services comes to an 
end on 31st March, 2013. Rather than re-tender for 
these services immediately, a remodelling of the 
service is proposed in order to ensure these important 
services for carers are in keeping with the proposed 
Care and White Bill Support as well as the move 
towards personalised social care services. Cabinet is 
therefore requested to extend the existing contracts by 
one year in order to remodel the service leading to a 
competitive tender.

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne 

CS - Paul 
Feven

The Carers 
Strategy 
Group, NHS 
Hillingdon

New Private 
(3)

846 Ruislip Lido 
Enhancement 
Programme: Woody 
Bay Landscaping and 
Toilet Block

Cabinet will receive the landscaping proposals for the 
Woody Bay enhancement and the installation of a new 
toilet block alongside the Railway Station and make 
any necessary decisions.

West 
Ruislip

Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

RS - 
Mohamed 
Bhimani

New Private 
(3)

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

Cabinet meeting - 20 December 2012

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 1 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 45



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

816 Tender for Tenants 
Contents Insurance 
Scheme and 
Leaseholder 
Contents Insurance 
Scheme

The Council currently has an Insurance scheme for 
provision of 'pay weekly with rent' contents insurance 
offered to Hillingdon's tenants and is seeking to create 
a similar financial inclusion product for leaseholders. 
Both schemes are currently being tendered with 
assistance from Corporate Procurement. Cabinet is 
asked to review the results of the tender and agree to 
award the insurance contracts.

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco 

CS - Simone 
Batchelor

Corporate 
Teams

New Private 
(3)

837 Hillingdon's Health 
and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2012-2015

This report to Cabinet will seek approval of a Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, developed in partnership 
between the Council, Hillingdon's Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Voluntary Sector partners. 
The Health and Wellbeing Board has a duty to prepare 
such a strategy, which will also need to be approved by 
key partners.

Various Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot 
and Cllr 
Philip 
Corthorne

CS / SC&H - 
Paul Feven

Partner 
organisations

827 Contract Award - 
advocacy services 
for Adults and 
Children

Cabinet will be asked to agree the provision of a range 
of advocacy services for adults and children including 
people facing concerns regarding their safeguarding 
following a competitive procurement process. Under 
the 1989 Children Act, local authorities have a duty to 
appoint "Independent Visitors" for children and young 
people in their care. Under the 2004 Children Act, local 
authorities have a duty to deliver an independent 
Advocacy Service for children and young people in 
care.

All Cllr David 
Simmonds, 
Cllr Philip 
Corthorne 

CS - Paul 
Feven

Service Users, 
NHS 
Hillingdon, 
CNWL

Private 
(3)

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 2 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 46



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

834 Anti-Social 
Behaviour Policy for 
Tenants and 
Leaseholders

Following Hillingdon Homes' return to the Council, a 
revised policy is being recommended for approval.

All Cllr 
Douglas 
Mills, Cllr 
Philip 
Corthorne 
& Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot

RS - Ed 
Shaylor

Local Tenants 
Forum, 
Housing 
Management

835 Domestic Violence 
Procedures for 
Housing Staff

This report to the Cabinet Member will set out revised 
procedures that Hillingdon Housing Services will follow 
when dealing with cases of domestic violence and 
other forms of harmful practices involving its tenants 
and people who approach the Council for housing 
advice and assistance.

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne

RS - Ed 
Shaylor

Cabinet Member Decisions - December 2012

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 3 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 47



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

824 Council Tax Base 
and Business Rate 
Forecast

Council will be asked to approve the Council Tax Base 
for 2013/14 and the Business Rate Forecast

All 17-Jan-13 Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

CS - Paul 
Whaymand

Corporate 
consultees

Council - 17 January 2013

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 4 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 48



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

861 Young Person's 
Housing Advice and 
Support Service

Housing advice and related support enable the Council 
to fulfil its statutory obligation under Section 179 of the 
1996 Housing Act. Whilst the housing support services 
have previously been open to competitive tender, the 
housing advisory services have not. This report will 
make recommendations to Cabinet following a market 
testing exercise to determine a way forward for the 
provision of these services.

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne 

CS / SC&H - 
Paul Feven

key 
stakeholders

New Private 
(3)

741a Hillingdon Housing 
Strategy 2012 - 2015 - 
POLICY 
FRAMEWORK

Hillingdon's Housing Strategy outlines the Council's 
proposals for responding to the key national and local 
issues for housing including public sector housing, the 
use of the private rented sector as well as home 
ownership. The priorities and key issues for the 
strategy were presented to Cabinet in 2011 and 
approved for consultation with partner organisations. 
This report will  present the draft strategy for formal 
consultation. It will be reported back to Cabinet and, if 
agreed, submitted to Council for adoption.

All TBC Cllr Philip 
Corthorne

RS / CS - 
Paul Feven

A range of 
partner 
organisations, 
SCHH staff 
and other 
stakeholders. 
Social 
Services, 
Health and 
Housing POC

Cabinet meeting - 24 January 2013

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 5 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 49



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

813 Tenancy Strategy The Localism Act 2011 requires each local authority to 
prepare and publish a Tenancy strategy that reflects 
the housing needs and priorities of the locality by 
January 2013.  The tenancy strategy is the local 
authority’s policy statement on the provision of and 
access to social housing in its area. Its primary 
purpose is to give direction to providers of local social 
housing about the tenures it considers will best meet 
its citizens’ needs.  It will enable the Council to improve 
understanding of the housing market in the borough 
and provide a framework for a consistent approach to 
be shared with other key partners and customers. 

All Cllr Philip 
Corthorne

RS - 
Beatrice 
Cingtho

Partner 
organisations

836 Outcome of further 
consultation on 
learning disabilities 
day services

Further to Cabinet's agreement to the Disabilities 
Commissioning Plan in January 2012, the Council has 
agreed to undertake further consultation on elements 
within the Plan concerning day services for people with 
a learning disability and/or a physical disability. This 
report will update Cabinet on the transformation of 
social care provision, the outcomes of assessments, 
support plans and the further consultation undertaken.

Various Cllr Philip 
Corthorne

CS - Paul 
Feven

Service users, 
carers and the 
public

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 6 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 50



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

826 Community Heritage 
Initiative Project: 
Draft Conservation 
Appraisals for 
consultation

The CHIP scheme for the Borough, funded by English 
Heritage, aims to empower local residents to write their 
own conservation area appraisals. Four of the five 
studies commenced have now progressed to draft 
reports. This report seeks agreement to go out to 
public consultation on the four documents. The 
proposals include changes to existing conservation 
area boundaries; a potential Article 4 Direction, to 
change permitted development rights in Morford Way 
Conservation Area and additions to the Local List of 
Buildings of Local Architectural or Historic Importance. 
The latter will however be taken forward separately as 
part of the next Local List Review.

Various, 
in particular 
Eastcote 
& East 
Ruislip

Cllr Keith 
Burrows

RS - Jales 
Tippell

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 7 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 51



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

801b The Council's Budget 
- Medium Term 
Financial Forecast 
2013/14 - 2016/17             
BUDGET & POLICY 
FRAMEWORK

This report will set out the Medium Term Financial 
Forecast (MTFF), which includes the proposed 
General Fund reserve budget and capital programme 
for 2012/13, along with indicative projections for the 
following three years. 

All 21-Feb-13 Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco & 
Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot

CS - Paul 
Whaymand 

Public 
consultation 
through the 
Policy 
Overview 
Committee 
process and 
statutory 
consultation 
with 
businesses & 
ratepayers

SI Supported Housing 
Programme

This report will update Cabinet and request any 
necessary decisions in order to progress the Council's 
Supported Housing Programme and HRA Pipeline 
projects, in order to upgrade and build new homes for 
residents and vulnerable adults in the Borough.

Various Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

RS - 
Norman 
Benn

Corporate 
consultees

Private 
(3)

Cabinet meeting - 14 February 2013

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 8 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 52



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these standard 
items are listed at the end of the Forward Plan. 

Various All CS - 
Democratic 
Services 

Various

Cabinet Member Decisions - February 2013

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 9 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 53



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

SI Supported Housing 
Programme

This report will update Cabinet and request any 
necessary decisions in order to progress the Council's 
Supported Housing Programme and HRA Pipeline 
projects, in order to upgrade and build new homes for 
residents and vulnerable adults in the Borough.

Various Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

RS - 
Norman 
Benn

Corporate 
consultees

New Private 
(3)

Cabinet meeting - 21 March 2013

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 10 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 54



Ref Decision Further information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em

b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct
 f
o
r 

fu
rt
h
er
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e 

d
ec
is
io
n

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

P
ri
va
te
 

d
ec
is
io
n
?

Council Departments:    RS = Residents Services     SC&H =Social Care & Health      CS = Central Services

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these standard 
items are listed at the end of the Forward Plan. 

Various All CS - 
Democratic 
Services 

Various

Cabinet Member Decisions - March 2013

Democratic Services - Tel: 01895 250470 or email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk                                           Page 11 This edition supersedes ALL previous editions

P
age 55



P
age 56

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2012
	5 Adult Community Mental Health Services - Draft Report Framework & Draft Recommendations
	ADULT COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH - DRAFT FRAMEWORK (3)

	7 Work Programme
	8 Forward Plan
	2012 - 12 - 03


